
SANTA MARIA VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 REGULAR MEETING 
November 21, 2024 – 6:30 p.m. 

2255 S. Broadway, Ste. 8E, Santa Maria, California 

Members of the Public may also join the meeting via Zoom: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89283522552?pwd=ivyQkaTtvASduYa45ivQFV5hwkaGOM.1 

Meeting ID: 892 8352 2552 
Passcode: 697604 

One tap mobile 
+16694449171,,89283522552#,,,,*697604# US

Or Dial  +1 669 444 9171 US 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER
a. Roll Call
b. Pledge of Allegiance

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
Members of the public may address the Board on any subject within the jurisdiction of the Board and which is
not on the agenda for Regular Meetings or that is on the agenda for Special Meetings. The public is 
encouraged to work through District staff to place items on the agenda for Board consideration. No action can 
be taken on matter not listed on the agenda. Comments are limited to five (5) minutes. 

3. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA
Items may be added to the agenda in accordance with Section 54954.2(b) of the Government Code, upon a
determination by a two-thirds vote of the members of the legislative body present at the meeting, or, if less
than two thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present, that there is a need
to take immediate action and that the need for action come to the attention of the District after the Agenda
was posted.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Recommended Action:  Motion to approve Agenda as published.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR
Items on the Consent Calendar are routine items that come before the Board of Directors on a regular basis.
Unless a Director or member of the public requests separate discussion/action on an item, all items on the 
Consent Calendar will be considered for approval on one motion.  
a. Approval of Minutes

Regular Meeting of October 17, 2024
b. Approval of Minutes

Special Meeting of October 17, 2024

1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89283522552?pwd=ivyQkaTtvASduYa45ivQFV5hwkaGOM.1


c. Approval of Minutes
Special Meeting of November 7, 2024

6. APPROVAL OF POLICY RE USE OF DISTRICT PROPERTY
Recommended Action: Consider motion to approve policy for use of District property

7. UPDATE ON REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS FOR ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES

8. REPORTS AND INFORMATION
a. Report on Operations at Twitchell Dam --

The Board of Directors will hear a report on dam conditions.

b. Twitchell Operations Committee (TOC) – Interim General Manager
The Board of Directors will hear an update from the TOC, which oversees all operational
aspects of Twitchell Dam.
i. TMA Project Funding

c. Financial Committee -Director Conrad, Chair
Financial Reports are prepared and reviewed by the District’s CPA, Carrie Troup.
Recommended Action:  Motion to receive and file report(s)

d. Report from Horne-Director Hadick
The Board of Directors will hear an update from Horne re Cal/OES and FEMA.
Recommended Action:  Motion to receive and file report(s)

9. DIRECTOR & STAFF REPORTS
a. Director Reports

Directors will report on any events or items of note concerning their Division/the District during
the prior month, if any.  Directors may also request placement of items on future agendas for
Board consideration.

b. General Manager’s Report
The interim General Manager will report on new or pending District matters and activities.

c. District Counsel Report
District Counsel will report on any relevant legal matters that may impact the District.

10. NEXT MEETING:  December 19, 2024

11. ADJOURNMENT

Upon request, agendas can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as 
required by section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to observe and participate in a meeting should direct such a request to the 
District Office at (805) 925-5212 at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible. 

POSTED/PUBLISHED:   November 18, 2024 

2



 
 
 
 

SANTA MARIA VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES – October 17, 2024 
 

District Office 
2255 S. Broadway, Ste. 8E 

Santa Maria, California  
 
1.  CALL TO ORDER: With a quorum present, the meeting was called to order at 6:31 p.m. 
 a. Roll Call:  Present were Directors Hadick, Conrad, Adam, Mahoney and Sharer.  Also 
present were Ramon Elias; Carrie Troup, CPA; Sam Hurst, Horne LLC; Juan Beltran; District Counsel 
Keith Lemieux; and Interim General Manager Carol Thomas-Keefer. 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance: President Hadick led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
2.  PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
3.  ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA: None 

 
4.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA: On motion by Director Adam and seconded by Director Sharer, 
the agenda was approved.  Motion carried: 5-0-0-2. 
 
5.  CONSENT CALENDAR: On motion by Director Sharer and seconded by Director Adam, the 
minutes of the Special Board Workshop of September 10, 2024; the Regular Meeting of 
September 19, 2024, and Special Meeting of September 19, 2024, were approved.  Motion 
carried 5-0-0-2. 
 
6.  APPROVAL OF JOINT FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH USGS FOR WATER RESOURCE 
INVESTIGATIONS ($38,820):  The Interim General Manager reported that the cost to the 
District to participate in this program had increased by about $3,000 over the FY 2023-24 cost.  
The board members requested that a USGS representative attend a future meeting to discuss 
the program.  Following additional discussion, on motion by Director Conrad and seconded by 
Director Sharer, the Joint Funding Agreement with USGS for Water Resource Investigations for 
FY 2024-25.  Motion carried 5-0-0-2. 
 
7.  APPROVAL OF CONTRACT EXTENSION FOR TEMPORARY DAM MONITORING 
SERVICES:  Following a brief discussion, on motion by Director Adam and seconded by 
Director Mahoney, the Board approved the contract extension with Gaedeke Hydrologic 
Services LLC for temporary dam monitoring services through December 31, 2024. Motion 
carried 5-0-0-2. 
 

3



8. REPORTS AND INFORMATION
a. Report on Operations at Twitchell Dam:  President Hadick reported that the reservoir is
still dewatering following completion of releases over the summer.  Director Conrad reported
that a trespasser was recently found at the dam site and the Sheriff was called to escort her
from the premises.

b. Twitchell Operations Committee (TOC):  Director Conrad led discussion on the project list
developed by the TOC, and the board determined the following priorities:
Top priority projects include shaft house maintenance and engine service; Road and drainage
repairs; and staff gage replacement or additions.  The second priorities were identified as
removal of rocks, addition of K-rail and possibly guard rail, and cleanout of keyhole and stilling
basin.  The board directed that the TOC now work with the General Manager on a plan to
accomplish the work.

c. Financial Committee:  Ms. Troup reviewed the September month-end financial statements,
along with invoices paid.  She noted that no new revenues had been received yet.  She also
reported that the CD at Community Bank would mature in November.  Director Sharer reported
that the Committee recommends renewing the CD at Community Bank if the interest rate is 4
percent or more; the Committee also recommends moving $300,000 from the District’s savings
account to the Cal CLASS investment account. On motion made by Director Conrad and
seconded by Director Sharer, the board approved the committee recommendation for the
renewal of the CD at Community Bank and the transfer of $300,000 from savings to Cal CLASS.
Motion carried 5-0-0-2.  On motion by Director Sharer and seconded by Director Adam, the
financial statements for September were received and filed.  Motion carried 5-0-0-2.

d. Report from Horne:  Mr. Hurst reviewed activities for the past month, and reviewed the draft
aerial survey from Lidar America, along with Mr. Beltran.

9. DIRECTOR & STAFF REPORTS
a. Director Reports:  Director Mahoney reported that he recently heard a commercial from Los
Angeles County regarding amount of water conserved and its value, and he suggested the
District consider a similar public service announcement or annual report identifying the amount
of water conserved and its value to the community.  The board members concurred and
suggested that spring may be a good time to provide this information to the public.  Director
Adam noted that, at a future meeting, he would like the board to consider appointment of a
committee to oversee project implementation, with committee members to include other
professionals.

b. General Manager’s Report:  Ms. Thomas-Keefer reported that there was an error with
Santa Barbara County elections division receiving election papers for Directors Sharer, Adam
and Mahoney for the November 5 general election, so the Board of Supervisors would make
those appointments in early November.  Additionally, she reported that she recently met with a
representative from the California Special District Association and noted that CSDA offers a
variety of online training opportunities for directors, including Brown Act and ethics training.

c. District Counsel Report:  District Counsel Lemieux had no report.

10. NEXT MEETING:  November 21, 2024

4



11. ADJOURNMENT:  It was moved and seconded by Director Sharer and Director Adam to
adjourn at 8:49 p.m.

Minutes approved on___________________ 

Keith Hadick, President 

Submitted by Carol Thomas-Keefer 

5



SANTA MARIA VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
October 17, 2024 – 5:30 p.m. 

District Office 
2255 S. Broadway, Ste. 8E 

Santa Maria, California  

1. CALL TO ORDER: With a quorum present, the meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m.

a. ROLL CALL:  Present were Directors Hadick, Mahoney, Adam, Conrad and Sharer. Also
present were District Counsel Keith Lemieux and Michael Linden; and Interim General Manager
Carol Thomas-Keefer.

b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  President Hadick led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: None

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: On motion by Director Sharer, seconded by Director Adam, the
agenda was approved as published.  Motion carried: 5-0-0-2.

4. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION:  5:34 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION:
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL; (Government Code 54956.9) Existing 
litigation: War Eagle v. Santa Maria Valley Water Conservation District, Santa Barbara 
Superior Court Case 23CV04459 

5. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION: District Counsel Lemieux stated the Board received
a report and no reportable action was taken in Closed Session.

6. ADJOURNMENT - It was moved and seconded by Directors Adam and Sharer to adjourn at
6:25 p.m.

Minutes approved on___________________ 

Keith Hadick, President 
Submitted by Carol Thomas-Keefer 

6



SANTA MARIA VALLEY WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
November 7, 2024 – 5:00 p.m. 

District Office 
2255 S. Broadway, Ste. 8E, Santa Maria, California 

1. CALL TO ORDER: With a quorum present, the meeting was called to order at 5:32 p.m.

a. ROLL CALL:  Present were Directors Hadick, Mahoney, Adam, Conrad and Sharer. Also
present were Special Counsel Rich Adam; District Counsel Michael Linden; and Interim General
Manager Carol Thomas-Keefer.  Mr. Ramon Elias and Mr. Ed Apalategui were present for open
session.

b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: President Hadick led the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT: None

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: On motion by Director Mahoney, seconded by Director Adam, the
agenda was approved as published.  Motion carried: 5-0-0-2.

4. ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION:  5:35 p.m.

CLOSED SESSION:
CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL; (Government Code 54956.9) Existing 
litigation: San Luis Obispo Coastkeeper, et.al. v. Santa Maria Valley Water Conservation 
District, et. al. 

CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL; (Government Code 54956.9) Potential 
undisclosed liability 

5. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION: District Counsel Linden stated that no reportable
action was taken in Closed Session.

6. DISCUSSION OF TWITCHELL OPERATIONS COMMITTEE REORGANIZATION:  Following
discussion, Director Sharer recommended that staff be designated as primary contact for the
District’s operations in order to ensure that information was documented and communicated to all
board or committee members as needed.  On motion by Director Adam and seconded by
President Hadick, the Interim General Manager was appointed to serve as chair of the District’s
Twitchell Operations Committee.  Staff was also directed to notify other agencies of the change
in primary contact for the District.

7



7. DISCUSSION OF ON-CALL ENGINEERING SERVICES:  Ms. Thomas-Keefer reported that
she had issued a Request for Qualifications for on-call engineering services to several
engineering firms but had not yet received responses.  The deadline for submittals was listed in
the RFQ as November 22.

8. ADJOURNMENT - It was moved and seconded by Directors Sharer and Mahoney to adjourn
at 7:25 p.m.

Minutes approved on___________________ 

Keith Hadick, President 
Submitted by Carol Thomas-Keefer 

8



STAFF REPORT 

TO: SMVWCD Board of Directors 

FROM: Carol Thomas-Keefer, Interim General Manager 

DATE: November 21, 2024  

RE: Draft Policy for Use of District Property 

Background: 

Last year’s report from the Santa Barbara County Grand Jury identified several recommendations 
for improvement within the District’s management and administration.  Many of these 
recommendations have already been put into place, as reported in the District’s response last June 
to the Grand Jury’s request for an update.  Additionally, District staff and counsel have been working 
together to identify, develop  and compile various policies into an Administrative Code for the 
District.  One such policy, which was also specifically identified by the Grand Jury, pertains to the 
use of District property and equipment.  While some aspects of the policy are addressed in the 
District’s employee handbook, the provisions do not necessarily apply to directors, so a more 
comprehensive policy to warranted to protect District’s assets.   

District counsel has prepared a draft policy addressing use of District property, including vehicles 
and equipment as well as facilities.  Although the policy somewhat restates the District’s position 
that personal property may not be stored on District premises, the key aspect of the policy is to 
ensure that District property is only used for District business not for personal use. 

Recommendation:   
The Board should review and consider approval of the draft Policy for Use of District Property. 

Attachment: 
• Draft Policy for Use of District Property

9



SANTA MARIA VALLEY WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT 

 Policy for Use of District Property 

10



I. PURPOSE

This Policy of the Santa Maria Valley Water Conservation District (“District”) has
been developed to address the use of the District’s property, including District-owned 
vehicles and equipment.  This includes the Twitchell Dam and Reservoir, which is not 
open to the public.   

II. POLICIES

A. No member of the District’s Board of Directors (“Board”), District Employee,
or other person, may conduct any activity on the District’s property, including the Twitchell 
Dam and Reservoir, that is for a non-District related purpose.   

B. No Board Director or District Employee may provide access to District
property to any family member, friend, or other person, for any purpose that is not related 
to the District’s business.   

C. No property of the District, including but not limited to motorized vehicles
and equipment, shall be used by a Board Director, District Employee, or other person for 
a a non-District related purpose.  The General Manager shall authorize all uses of District 
property.   

D. Storage on District property shall be for District purposes only. The personal
property of a Board Director, District Employee, or any other person shall not be stored 
on District property.  Such personal property includes, but is not limited to, automobiles, 
motorcycles, boats, and recreational vehicles.   

E. The prohibitions set forth above in subsections A through D of Section II
apply regardless of whether or not the District Board members or employees are on duty. 

III. ENFORCEMENT

Board Directors and District Employees found in violation of this Policy may be
subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination, or public censure. 

Rev. 07/2024 

11



12



13



 Santa Maria Valley Water Conservation District
 Cash Balances Report

 As of October 31, 2024
TOTAL

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

California Class 1,015,141.05

Community Bank CDMaturity Nov16 511,100.70

Community Bank of Santa Maria 482,321.69

Community Bank of SM-Saving 52,483.40

Community Bank SM-Agency Fund 100.00

Total Checking/Savings 2,061,146.84

14



15



16



17


	11-21-24 Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	SMV 10-17-24 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	SMV 10-17-24 Special Meeting Minutes.pdf
	SMV 11-7-24 Special Meeting Minutes.pdf
	SMV STAFF REPT 11-21-24  District property.pdf
	Use of District Property Policy - October 2024 (997271.1)(1021292.1) (002).pdf
	I. PURPOSE

	Financial Reports October 2024.pdf



